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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) = SR
Plaintiff, Civil No. Y oBg
g ivil No o %g ’ (ao
. ) ﬂk w?
A ) A
ROOS FOODS, INC,, . ) CONSENT DECREE OF
acorporatmn - ) - PERMANENT INJUNCTION
- : | ) :
and :
SR g Misc.case#_ [ =29
ANA A. ROOS and VIRGINIA ) U.S. DISTRICT COURT |
MEIIA, individuals, ) DISTRICT OF DELAWARE
Defendants )
)

- Plaintiff, United Staten of America, by its undersigned attorneys, having filed a
Complaint for Pennanentlnjunction against Roos Foods, Inc. (“Roos Foods™), a corporation, and
Ana A. Roos and Virginia Mejia, intlividuals (collectively “Defendants™), alleging the following:

"A. Defendants violate the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 331(a), by introducing or delivering for
introduction, or causing to be introdnced or delivered for introduction, into interstate commerce
articles of food within the meamng of21 US.C. § 321(t) that are adulterated within the
meaning of 21 US.C. § 342(a)(4)

B. Defendants violate the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 331(k), by adulteratmg, or causing the

- 'adulteratxon of, artlcles of food within the meanmg of 21 U S.C. § 342(a)(4) wh11e such articles

are held for sale after shlpment of one or more 1ngred1ents in interstate commerce; and
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Defendants, without admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint,. having appeared and
consented to entry of this Consent Decree of Permanent Injunction (“Decree"’) without contest '
and before any testimony has been taken, and the United States of America having consented to
this Decree: |
ITIS HEREBY ORDERED, ADIUDGE]j, AND DECI%EED tnat:
1. This Ccurt has jurisdiction over the sut)j ect matter and over all parties to this action. . o
2. VT.he-Cc_»)rnplaint for Pennanent injt_dmct-i_onstates a canSe of action .against Defendants -
under the F ederai >F eo‘d, Drug, and Ccsrneﬁc Act (the “Act”), 21 U.S.C. .§ 301 et seq.
3. _ﬁor the,purposes of this Decree,' |
“Roos facility(ies)” include(s):
(1) 251 Roos Lane, Ken_ton? Delaware;
(2) t93 Cooper Street, Kenton, Detanvare; and/or
(3) any other locations at or frorn which Defendants, now or in the.ﬁ;ture, receive,
prepare, process, pack, hold, or distribute any articles.' of food. |
4. Defendants represent to the Court that, at the time of entry of this -Decree, they are not
engaged in_receiving,‘ preparing, precessing, packing, holding, or distributing any t}ipe_ or food at
- or from any location.' | | |
5. If Defendants later mtend to resume recervrng, preparmg, processmg, packmg,

' = holdmg, or drstnbutmg food at or from any Roos fa0111ty(1es) they must first notrfy the United

a States Food and Drug Admlnrstratlon (“FDA”) in m1t1ng at least mnety (90) calendar days in

advance of resuming operatrons and comply with paragraphs 6(A) (K) of this Decree. This
not1ce shall 1dent1fy the type(s) of food Defendants intend to recerve prepare, process pack

hold, or distribute at or from the Roos facrhty(res). Defendants shall not resurhe operatlons until
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I

FDA has inspected the Roos facility(ies) and operations pursuant to paragiaph 6(D), ?Defendants
have paid'the costs of such inspection(s)"pursaant to paragraph 14, and Defendants iiave raceived

S - |
‘writteii notice from FDA, as required by paragraph 6(J), and thi:n shall resume operations only to
the extent authorized in FDA’s written notice. |

| 6. Defendants and each and all of their afﬁcers, agents, employees, represeritatii/es,
succasSois; assigns, heiré, attorney_s,aﬁd any an-d all per,s’o.ri_s in active concert or participation -
with any of them (including indi\tiduals, directors, corporati_oné_,- subaidiaries, affiliates, and .
: partnersiii'p's). are hereby permanentlf,' restrained and ehj oined, under the prqvisions of21 US.C.
.§ 332(a) and the: equitable authority of this Court, from directly i)r indirectly receiving, -
preparing, procéssing, packing, holding, and/or distributing articles of food, at or from any Roos
facility(ies), unless andruntilz |

| A Defendants retain, at their ex;iensa, an independent laboratory (the

“Iaboratory”) having no personal or financial ties (other than the retention agreeineiit) to
Defen(iants or theii faniilias, which is qualiﬁad to colléct product and epvironménta_l samples
from within the Roos facility(ies) and analyze those samples for the presence of Listeria,
incluciing ,L.z'steria monocytogenes .(“L. ‘_moizo”), in a‘method that is acceptabie to FDA.

‘Deferidants shall notify FDA in writing immediatelii upon retaining such laboratory and shall

.provide FDA a copy of the service contract. Such service contract shall contain certain

provisioris, acceptable to FDA, for regular environmental and finished product sample collection

and analyseé,' 'including how and where to sampie, th'ev‘nfliinber and frequency r_of Vsampvles to be
»céllected, and the methods of analyses, 1n accordance with the Listeria Monitoring Program
. . '. ‘

discussed in paragraph 6(C) below;

B. Defendants retain, at their expense, an independent expert(s) (the
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“sanitation expert”) having no personal or financial ties (other than the retention agreement) to
Defendants or their families, and_‘who, by reason of backgrouna, education, trainingl and
experience, is qualiﬁed to inspect the Roos facility(ies) and to determine whether the methods,
facility(ies), and controls are operated and administered in conformity with the Act and 21
C.F.R. Part 110. Defendants shall nntify FDA in writing of the name(s) and qualifications of thei‘
sanitatiqn expert(s) as soon as they retain such expert(s) ;

| ‘C. Defendants’ sanifcation expert, in consultation with the labor_atni'y, after |
reviewing all FDA and Delaware Division of Public Health (“DDPH”) observations from July
2010 to present for"the Roos Foods facility located at 251 Roos Lnne, Kenton, Delaware,
develops a ﬁﬁen Listeria Monitoring Program, which shall include, at a minnnum, the
following:

(D An effective written sanitation control program that eStélblishes adequate
methods, facility(ies), and controls fnr receiving, preparing, prncessing, packing, holding, and
distributing articles of food to minimize the risk of introduction of patho genip 'Liste}’ia, othér
pathngenic microorganisms, any other poisonous or deleterious substance, or ﬁlth into-
Defendants’ food, and to ensure that Defendants’ foods .arev not adulterated within tne meaning of
2‘1' U.S.C.‘A§',.342(a).A Such methods, _facility(ies)_, and conﬁols shall includé, bnt shail not be
~ limited to, thoroughly cleéning, sanitizing, renovating, and rendering the fac’ility(ies) and all

" equlpment therein sultable f01 use in recelvmg, nrepanng, processmg, packmg, holdmg, and
dlstnbutmg artlcles of food to prevent such artlcles ﬁom becomlng adulterated and 1nst1tut1ng
'standard sanitation operatlng procedures (“SSOPS”) to ensure that: the fa0111ty(1es) and equipment

therein are continuously maintained in a sanitary condition;
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| | (2) A written employee t}'aining program (in English and Spanish) that includes,
at a minimum, instruction on san;'tary food handling tecbnique; and documentation that each
emplqyeé has received such fraining. Defendants’ sanitation expert shall ensure that each
employée fully understands Athe substance of the employee training program;
(3) An effective pro gfam of enviromnental'monitoring and testing of the Rdos
facility(iés) to ensure “that micr_oqrgam'sms such as Listeria, any other poisonous or deleterious
 substance, and filth are not preserit within the facility(ies). Eﬁyironmental moﬁitoﬁng shali“ :
- inciude, but not be limited to, collecting swab samples from food-contact surfaces, equipment, -
and other environmental sites throughout the Rooé facility(ies) (where the raw ingredients, in-
process, and finished arﬁcles of foods are received, prepared, processed, packed, held, and/or
distributed, and common areas that could be reservoirs for cros’s@ontaminationi and analyzing
collected sarhpl_es, in a manner acceptable to FDA. Defendants shall eﬁsure that the results of all
analysés conducted pursuant to this baragraph are sent to FDA within two (2) business days after
.receipf by Defendants; and | |
) (4) A written plan for remedial action should pathogenic Listeria, any other
pathogenic microorganisms, any other poisonous or deleterious substance, and/or ﬁl_th be
- detected;
D. Deféndér_lts assign continuiﬁg responsibility for the opcratién of the
~ Listeria Monitoﬁng P'fograr;a tc; a persion or persons who, by reason of background,_ expefrience,- 7
or educatidﬁ, ié‘_ c-C)fnpeten;c fo maintain the faciiity(ieé) ina saﬁifary é’oﬁdition", vcoordina'te _\.N:ith
the laboratory, and hnplément any nééessary remedial action(s), and provide sﬁch person with
the authority to achieve the necessary corrections;- |

E. FDA approves, in writing, the Listeria Monitoring Program discussed in
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paragraph 6(C) prior to implementation;
F. The sanitation expert conducts a comprehensive inspection of the i{oos . _
facilitY(ies) and the methods and controls used to-receive, prepare, process, pack, hold, and
“distribute foods to determine Wﬁether Defendants have effectivgly implemented all necessary
conepﬁoné and are operating in compliance with this Decree, the Act, and Zi C.F.R. Part 110.
, The expert ’fshall submit all ﬁndiﬁgs té Defendants and FDA copcmrently, within ten ('1’0)
busineés déys after completion of t-hé:in.spection; | |
G. Defendants report to FDA in writing the actionsi’rthey have taken to
bfing the operations at fhe Roos facility(ies) ipto compliance wi’ﬁh the Act and :%11 applicable |
regulétions, including: | | ~\
| 1) Documentation that Défendants have cleaned and sanitized the Roos
facility(ies)‘ .anc‘l ec'luip.ment therein and made imiarovements, thér};eb}; rendering the Roos -
facility(ies) and equipment therein suitable for ;éceiving, processing, preparing, packing,
“holding, and distributing grticleé of food, and documentation thatkv Defendants have conduétéd
envﬁonﬁental testing in a manner acceptable to FDA and received lanrathy results showing
- that Listeria is no longer present in the Roos facility(ies) or on the equipment th_éreir‘i; _énd
| 1(2) Speciﬁc measures t_hat they have taken to addréss éach b_f the viélatjons
_ _documegted byVFDA and DDPH forAthe Roos .Fo‘ods facility lécafed at 251 Roos Lane, Kentoﬁ,
Delawére, sinc_ej 1__11y 20 1 0."
: o H W1th1n twenty (20) 'bljlsinéss dayé up‘on‘ énhy of ﬂ'ﬁs Decree, liefeﬁdants R
destroy, fmdef FbA’s sﬁpervision, and aécording fo a destruction plan submitted in wrltmg by
Defendants a'nd approved ,inf\x'rliting by FDA pﬁor to ifnplementation, all in-process and finished

articles of food currently in their custody, control, or possession at the Roos facility(ies);
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1. FDA, aé it deems necessary to evaiuate Defendants’ compliance with the
terms of this Decree, the Act, and all applicable regulations, conducts inspections of the Roos
facility(ies), including the buildings, sanitation;related systems, equipment, utensils, all articles
of food, and relevant records contained therein. Defendants shall ensure that all relevant records
are _readil.y accessible at all times; |

j . EDA notrﬁeS'Defendants in writing that Defendants appear to
bein cornphance with the requuements set forth in paragraph 6(A) through (H) of thlS Decree
the Act, and 21 CFR Part 110; and

g K. Defendants have paid all costs of inspection, analyses, review,

inyestigations, examination, and super\{ision for FDA’s oversight with respect to paragraph 6(A)
through (J) at the rates set forth tn p'aragraph 14 below. -

7. Defendants and each and all r)f their ot‘ﬁcers, agents employees, representatives, -
successors, assigns, heirs, attorneys, and any and all persons in active concert or participation
with any of them (including indiﬁduals, directors, corporaﬁons, subsidiaries,- afﬁl_iajtes, and
partnerships) who recei\re actual notice of this Decree pursuant to paragraph 23 belew, are
pennanently'restrained and enjoined under the provisions of 21 U.S.C. § 332(a) from directly-or
1nd1rectly domg or causrng any act that: | |

A v101ates the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 331(a), by 1ntroducmg or dehvenng for
'1ntroductron or causmg to be mtroduced or dehvered for 1ntroduct10n 1into interstate commerce
artrcles of food that are adulterated w1th1n the meanrng of 21 U.S. C § 342(a)(4) |
| B. violates the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 331(k), by causing articles of food to be
adulterated W1th1n the meaning of 21 U.S.C. § 342(a)(4) while sueh articles are held for sale after

shipment of one or more mgredlents in 1nterstate cominerce; or



Case 1:16-mc-00029-UNA  Document 1 Filed 01/22/16 Page 8 of 19 PagelD #: 8

i
i

C. results in the failure to implement and continuously maintain the applicable

|
. - ‘
requirements of this Decree.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 7, Defendant Vifginia Mejia may paﬁicipate‘ in the
marketing of food products for any corporation, partnership, firm, company, business, entity,
and/or persons, other tﬁan the remaining Defendants. - l

- A. Defendant -Virgiﬁia Mejia shall notify FDA in wfiting at leaét ten (10)
" business 'days prior to bécofning employed by, or'otherwis_e_ engaged with, any corporatioh,
| partnership, firm, company, businesé, entity, and/pr pers.c>ns tixat is/are engaged in receiving,
préparing, pl'qcessing, packing, holding, or distributing any type\!of food (“Mejia employer(s)”),
-and such notification shall include the name(s) and address(es) o;‘f the Mejia employer(s). '

B Defendant Mejia also ;hall provide to FDA an afﬁ@ﬁt with a detailed
description of hef employment dutie; at vand/or for thé Mejia employer(s) within ten (10) -
business" days of beginning her employment. If Defendant Virginia Mejia’s employment duties
sigpiﬁcantly change during the course of her employment at and/or for the Mejia e;mp’loyer(s),
Defendant Virginié Mejia shall provide to FDA an affidavit detailing her new employment duties
within ten (10) business days of assuming the new employment duties. In -n§ circumstances,shall
-Defendant. Virginia Mejia”s employméht duties at a Mejia employer extend beyond marketing of
food products: | |

9. Immediately -'upon resurn‘ing operations at any Roos facility_(ies) after coxinplet_in-g’;hg

' requirerznénts'éjf paragfai)h 6 ana re.ceiggi:rig ertten notice from FDA pursﬁant to par.agr-a'.ph; 6(] ); '
Défeﬂdants shall, m consulfatioﬁ with the labo-ratory and thé sanitation expert, contiinu-ously

. implement the following Stéps to prevent ac}ulteréltioﬁ of food rece;ived, prepared, processed,

packed, held in, and/or distributed ﬁ_dnﬁ, Defendants’-facility(ies):
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A. Effectively implement, on an ongoing basis, theListeria Monitoring:
Program developed pursuant to paragraph 6(C).
B. Conduct environmental monitoring and testing as set forth in paragraph 6(C)(3)
té ensure that the SSOPs continue to eliminate the Listeria hazard and that the SSOES are
consistently followed. Envﬁonﬁental testing shall be performed by the labo%atory in accordance
with timetables and methods"fhat Défendants submit in writing to FDA for prior written approval
by FDA. Defendants shall ensure that the results of all testing conducted pursuant to fchiys .
paragfaph are forwarded to FDA within two (2) business days after receipt by befendants.
Defendants’ environmental testing must include, ét' a mmlmum, all of the following:

(1)A if a food- or ﬁon-food-contact éurface tests positive for Listeria during roﬁtine
testing, intensified sampling must be initiated immediately, in conjunction with intensified
sanitatiorvlbmeasures. Intensified sampling requires that three (3) samples pér day mus"c be
collected aﬁd analyzed until a total of nine (9) consecutive samples (three (3) days of intensified
sampiing) have tested negative for Listeria from th.e site_: where the Listeria _wés identified. After
nine (9) consecutive samples have tested negative for Listeria, that site may be subject to routine
sampling; and

| | 2) _ail food in contact iyith a Zone 2 and Zone 3 i(.non-food cohtact) site that tests
positive fof _Listeriq must be quarantinéd and tested for pathogén:ic Listeria. Food that tests
negative for pathoge_nic Listefia ma&r be released ﬁoﬁl Qﬁéraﬁtme; food testing posiﬁve vfc;r
patﬁégéﬁié Jii.%teria, asjw"elill és ;ﬂi foﬁd manufacfﬁred since the positive labofétory ;érﬁple(s)
were collected, mﬁst be destroyed ﬁursuant t§ a written déstructio\n plan approved in writing by
FDA. Fﬁrther,.all food in contact With a Zone 1 (direct food contact) site that tests positive for

Lz'sterfa, as well as all food manufactured since the positive laboratory sample(s) were collected,
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must be destroyed pursuant to a written destruction plan approved by FDA. Defendants shall
bear the costs of such destruction and the costs of FDA’s supervision of such destruction, at the
rates specified in peragraph 14; and

C. Conduct finished product testing in the following menner:

(1) Defendants shall test for pathogenic Listeria in all lots of each food product
for at least five (5) consectltiv_e production days using a testing method apprOvedin advance by
FDA; |

2) After the-completion of testing under paragraph 9(C)(1), Defendants shall test
at least one lot of each food product per day for the next twenty (20) production days;

(3) After the completion of testing under paragraph 9(C)(2), Defendsnts shall test
at least one lot of each food product per every five (5) production days for tlle next three (3)
rnonths; and | | |

(4) After the completion of testing under paragraph 9(C)(3), Defendants shall test
et least one-Jot of each food product per month thereafter.

(5) If any laboratory test completed pursuant to paragraphs 9(C)(1)-(4) shows the
presence of pathogens, including L. mono, in any article ot‘ food, then Defendants must
immediétely cease production and rlotify FDA that production has ceased. Defendants shall also
destroy, at.Defend'ants’ expense, under FDA’s supervision, and pursuant to a written destruction
plan approved in wntmg by FDA pnor to 1mplementatron all posrtwe food samples as well as
all food manufactured since the positive samples were collected Defendants may resume '
productron only when they have determined and corrected the cau‘«se of the contamination and
only aftér FDA notifies Defendants in writing that Defendants appear to be mn comp;liance' with

the requiremerrts of this Decree, the Act, and 21 C.F.R. Part 110. After correcting the cause of

10
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the contamination, Defendants shall reinstate the complete sequence of testing under this
 paragraph anew. Defendants shall ensure that the results of all testing conducted pursuant to this
baragraph are forwarded to FDA within two (2) business days after receipt by Defendants. ,
10. If Defendants terminate or alter in any way their service contract with the laboratory

-rgtained for the Roos faéility(ies) pursuant to paragrai)h 6(A), Defendants-shall notify FDA
~ -within five (5) business aays after such termination or alteration. Ingfend’ants terminate their
’s:ervice contract, Defendants shall provide a copy of the service contract with the nev;/ laboratory
j fé FDA within five (5) business dayé after such servibe contract‘is executed.

11. FDA shall be permitted, without prior notice and as when FDA deems necessary, to
make inspectiéns of the Roos facility(ies), and without prior notice, to take any other measures-
necessary to monitdr and ensure continuing compl_iance with the terms of this .Decree,. the Act,
‘and its implementing regulations-. During the inspections of the Roos facility(ies), FDA shall be
permifted to have immediate access o buildings, equipment, raw ingredients, in-process and

. ﬁnished articles of food, containers, and packaging material therein; to take photographs and -
make video recordings; to take samples of Defendants.’ raw ingredients, in-process, and fmished
articles of food, containers, and,p'acl‘caging material; and to examine and copy all records relatéd ,
to receiving, preparing, processiﬁg, packing, holding, and distribﬁting -any and all articles of
food. The inspectidns shall be permitted upon presentation of a copy of this Decree; and
appropriate cfédentials. The inspection authority gran’Fed by this Decree is apart -fro!m,_ and in
-'édaiﬁovh to; the authority to make ihgbécﬁons under the Acf, 21 U.S.C. § 374.: | |

12. Defendants shaﬁ notify FDA in writing at ieast ﬁfteenv; (15) business days before é,ny
change in ownership, name, or character of their business, inciudiﬁg reorganization, relocation,

dissolution, assignment, or lease or sale of the business or any assets of the business, such as

11
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buildings, equipment, or inventory, that may affect compliance with the obligations arising from
this Decree. Défendants shall provide épy prospective succéssc)r or assign with a copy of this
Decree at least ten (10) business days before the assignment or change in buéiness, and shall
- provide FDA with an affidavit of compliance with this paragraph within ten (10) business days
after providing a copy of this Decree to-a prospecti\ié Successor, or assign. |
13. At least ten (‘1 0) businesé days priof td Defendants selling, leasing, t_ra_nsferring,
‘relocating, and/dr'mof;ing'in any fashion food rh‘a'nuf_acturiné equipment from the Roos
faciliy(ies) to any location Where food is rebeived, prepared, processed, packed, held, or
- distributed Defendants shall submit Wn't_ten documentatioﬁ to FDA certifying that the équipment 4
has been cleaned and sanitized in a manner acceptable to FDA. |
14. Defendants shall reimburse FDA for the costs of all FDA inspections of the Roos
' fa;:ility(ies), investigations, éupewision, analyses, examinations, and reviews»that FDA deems
ne'celssary to evaluate Defendants’ compliance with this Decree, at the prevailing rates in effect at
'fche time the costs are incurred. As of the date that this Decree is signed by the parties, these rates
are: $88.45 per hour and fraction thereof per representative for inspection work; $ 1:06203 per
hour or fraction thereof per representative for analytivcal-or review work; $0.5 6 per mile for travel
by automobile; government rate or the equivalent for travel by air ér other means; and the
published goverrﬁnent per diem rate_ér the equivélent for the areas in which the inspgctions are
~ performed pér representative_ gnd per day for subsisfen_ce expenses, where necéssary. In the
' event that the standard r'atés épp_l-icall)le to FDA isul))"exv'\}ision of coilﬂ-drdered compliéﬁce éré '
modified, these rates shail be increased or decreas eci without further order of tﬁe Court.
15. If, at any time after entry of this Decree, FDA determines, based on the results of an

inspection, sample analyses, or other information, that one or more Defendants have failed to

12
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comply with any applicable provision of this Decree, havé violated the Act or its implementing
regulations, or that additiqnal corrective actions aré necessary to achieve compliance with this
Decree, the Act, or its implementing regulations, FDA may, as an(i wheﬁ it deems necessary,
| notify such Defendant(s) in writing ;atnd order such Defendant(s) to take appropriate_' action,
: including, but not limited to, ordering such Defendant(s) to imrﬁediately take one or more of the
following actions:

A. Cease r(;c;eiving, prepaﬁné, processing, packing, holding, and/or dfstributing any '
articles of food at or ﬁ'Q_m the Roos facility(ies);

B. Recaﬂ all ‘.articles of food that ha§e beén.distributed or are under the custody
and controi of such Defeﬁdant’s(s’) agents, distributors, customers, Or consumers;

C. Submit samples of articles of food to a qualified iabqratory to determine
~ .whethgr they are contaminated with chemicals, tdxins, 'rﬁicroorganisnis, or filth; an(:i/or

. D Take any other corrective actions as FDA deems necessary to bring s;uch

Defendant(s) into compliance with this Decree, the Act, and its implementing regul;cttions.

The provisions of this paragraph shall be separate and apart from, and in adcﬁtion to, all
other remedigs available to FDA. Defendant(s) Who receive notification under this baragra_ph
shall pay all costs of recalls aild other corrective actions, including the costs of FDI;’S |
supervision, inspecti.ons, illveétigatidns, analyses, examinations, review, travel, and.subsistence
expenses to implement and monitor recalls and other correActive actions, at fhe rates specified in
paireléraﬁh léi of this Deéfée. |

16; Any cessatibn of operations as describéd in ﬁaragraph 15(A) shali be imi)lemented
ir'nmédiately upon notice from FDA and shall continue unt11 such Defendant(s) receive written

notification from FDA that such Defendant(s) appear(s) to be in compliance with the Decree, the

13
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Act, and its implementing regulations. After a cessation of operations, and while determining
whether such Defendant(s) is/are in _compliance with the Decree, the Act, and its implementing
regulaﬁoné, FDA may require such Defendant(s) to re-institute or re-implement any of the
requirements of this Decree.

17. If Defendants fail to comlﬂly with the provisions of the Act, its implementing
regulations, and/or this Decree, then‘Defenda_nts sﬁall pay to the United States of America
Hquidated damages in the sum of two» thousand dollars ($2,000.00) for each day that Defendants “
fail to comply with this Decree; an additional sum of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) in
liquidated damages per day for each ﬁolation of the Act, its implementing regulations, and/or
this Decrée; and an additional sum equal to twice‘the retail value of each shipment of adulterated
_ »food. Defendants understand and agree that the liquidated damages specified in this paragraph
ére not punitive in nature and their iméosition does not in any way limit the ability of the United
States to seek, and the Court to impose, additional criminal or civil penalties based on conduct
that may also be the basis for payment of the hquidated damages.

18. If any Defendant violates.applicable provisions of this Decree and is found in
contempt Athereof, such Defendant(s) shall, in addition to other remedies, reimburse Plaintiff for
its attorﬁeys’ fees, travel expeﬁses iﬁcuired by attorneys and witnesses, expert witness fees,
administrative and court costs, investigation and analytical expenses inCI-JI‘I‘Cd in bringing the
' éoritempt action, and any other costs or fees related to the cbntempt proceedings;

19. rAll decisions sﬁeciﬁed in this Decree shall'Bé vestéd in the discretion of FDA.
FDA’s d-e'cisions shaﬂ be final and,'to the extenf that these dec.isic()ns are squect to revievs'f, shall
be revi‘e\yed by the Court under the arbitrary anci_,papricidus stanciard set forth in 5 U.S.C.

§ 706(2)(A). Review by the Court of ény FDA decision rendered pursuant to this Decree shall

14
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: l
be based exclusively on the written record before FDA at the time the decision was made. No

discovery shall be ta_ken. by either party.

20. Within ten (10) business days after entry of this Dec‘}ree, Defendants shall provide a
copy of this Decree to eéch and all of their officers, agents, employees, representatives,
SUCCESSOTS, assigns, héir's, attorneys, and any and all persons in active concert or participation

- with any of them '(.including individuals, directors, corporations, subsidigﬁes, affiliates, and
parmershii)s). Défendants shall provide to FDA wifhin twenty (20) business-days after the date
of entry of this Decfee, ah affidavit bf comi)liaﬁce With this paragraph stating the fact and

... 'manner of cémpliancé and identifying the names and positions of all persons so notified.

21. Defendants shall prominently post a copy of this Decree (in English and Spaﬁish) in

an employee.common area at the Roos facility(ies) within ten (10) business days after entry of
' fhis Decree and shall ensgre’that the Decree remains posted for a period of at least six (6)
months.

22. Defendants shall, within ten (10) business days after entry of this Decree:,; hold a
.general meeting or series of smaller meetings for employees of the Roos facility(ies), at which

- they shall d¢scribé the terms and obligations of this D_ecreé. ‘V

23. In the event th;cﬁ any Defeﬁdant(s) become(s) associated with any additional officers,
agents, employees, representatives, succeésors, assigns, heirs, attorneys, or any additional

-' pefsons in éctive concert or participation with any of them (including individﬁalé, directors,

' -corporation's, subsidiarri‘e’s', afﬁliatés,' and paftnerships) at z-my time after entry of th‘is; D‘ééree, such
Defendant(S) shall iin_mediately pfovide a copy of this Decree, by} persona;l service cér cerﬁﬁed
nmail (restricted delivery,’fétum receipt requested), ;fo such persbns. Within ten (1 0) business

days after each instance that any Defendant becomes associated with any such addiﬁional

15
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persons, such Defendant(s) shall proyide to FDA an affidavit stating the fact and manner of such
Defendant’s(s’).compliance with this paragraph, identifying thé names, addresses, and positions
of all person who received a copy of this Decree pursuant to this paragraph, and attaching a copy
of the executed certified mail return receipts. Within ten (10) business days after receiving a
request from FDA for any information of documentation that FDA deems necessary to .ev.aluate
Defendants’ Complianée with this paragraph, Deféndants shall provide such information or
docurhentat’iqn to FDA': | |

24, Tilis Decree resolves only the claims in this statutory injunction 'a;:tion brought under
21 U.S.C. § 332(2) és set forth in the Complaint. Defendants specifically state and aéree that
entronf this Decree does not preclude any othér civil, criminal, or administrative cléhﬁs that the
government may have or may bring in fhe future against any of the Defendants herein in
connection Wi'[h; or reléﬁhg to, any Qf the Defg:ndants’ activities involving FDA regulated
products, including the conduct alleged in the Complaint filed with this Decree.

25. Defépd_énté shal_l address all communications with FDA required undef this Decree to
the Director, Phila;ielphia District Office, United States Food and Drug Administration, U.S.
Customhéxise, 2nd & Chestnut Sts., Room 900, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19106, and shall
. reference this ci\}il action by case name and civil aétion number in such .communications.

26. This Court sﬁaﬂ retain jurisdiction of this action and the parties hereto f(;r the pufpose
of enforcing or modifying this Dec-ree aﬁd for the purpose of granting such gdditioﬂal reliéf as

- may be necessary of appropriate. -

16
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SO ORDERED:

Dated this day of ,2014.

- UNITED STATES DISTP%ICT JUDGE

We hereby consent to the entry of the foregoing Decree:
For Defendant: - For Plaintiff:

JOYCE BRANDA
Acting Assistant Attorney General

JONATHAN F. OLIN
Deputy Assistant Attorney General

ANA A.ROOS

Indivi id on behalf of Roos ‘

oods Inc. 7 o CHARLES M. OBERLY, III
R : United States Attorney

‘ MICHAEL S. BLUME
: N}\F/ Director
<\ D ' Consumer Protection Branch
VIRG MEJIA _ N ' | '
Individu ‘
Patricia Hannigan

Assistant United States Attorney
1007 N. Orange Street

/ P.0. Box 2046

_ . Wilmington, DE 19899
EDMUXD DANIE; NS : :

Attorney for Defendants Ana A. Roos

and ¥irginia Mejia Mary M. Englehart

Washington, DC 20001

~ Trial Attorney T
. ga-‘ . - U.S. Department of Justice =~ -
- Consumer Protection Branch
- . - . 6™ Floor South :
i /b 450 Fifth Street, N.W.

of Céunsel: |
WILLIAM B. SCHULTZ
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SO ORDERED:

Dated this day of -, 2014,

_ UNITED’ STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

We hereby consent to the entry of the foregoing Decree:
For Defendant: For Plaintiff:

JOYCE BRANDA
Acting Assistant Attorney General

JONATHAN F. OLIN

3 .
ANA A.ROOS ' Deputy Assistant Attorhey General
Individuallyaid on behalf of Roos

oods Inc. CHARLES M. OBERLY, Il
United States Attorney

MICHAEL S. BLUME
Aﬂ Director
p-// Co, 1/Protection Branch
MEJIA . W ’
Indmdua A M—A’.—-—c,;__z—ﬂ(
Patricia Hannigan pDelaware Ba

Assistant United States Attorney
1007 N. Orange Street

, / P.0. Box 2046 |

g Wilkairkgton, DE 19899
EDMUND DANIRL LYONS \i\W
Attorney for Defendants Ana A. Roos ‘ '

and Virginia Mejia , Mary, flehArt
Trial Attorkey
U.S. Department of Justice
Consumer Protection Branch
6" Floor South )
450 Fifth Street, N.W.
Washington, DC- 20001

|

|

: 2145

Of Counsel:
WILLIAM B, SCHULTZ
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General Counsel

ELIZABETH H. DICKINSON |
Chief Counsel
Food and Drug Division

ANNAMARIE KEMPIC
Deputy Chief Counsel for Litigation

SHANNON M. SINGLETON
Assistant Chief Counsel for Enforcement
United States Department of Health and
~ Human Services -
Office of the General Counsel
Food and Drug Administration
10903 New Hampshire Avenue
Silver Spring, MD 20993-0002



